
138 S. Brandon St. • Fallbrook CA 92028 • 760-731-9187 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

WEDNESDAY 
OCTOBER 8, 2019 

6:00 PM 

AT 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 

138 SOUTH BRANDON ROAD  
FALLBROOK, CA 92028 



 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, October 8, 6:00 p.m. 
Administrative Office, 1st Floor Community Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM / PLEDGE OF 

ALLEGIANCE 

 
B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 

Pursuant  to the Brown Act, additions to the Agenda as posted are exceptional, and expressly limited to three specific situations, as 
set forth in Government Code 54954.2(b): (1) an “emergency” as determined by majority vote of the board; (2) a 2/3 vote of the board 
finding that an item requires immediate action – and the need for this action arose in time after the agenda was posted or (3) the item 
was continued from an earlier meeting (no more than 5 days earlier), at which time the item was validly posted on the agenda of the 
earlier meeting. 

 
C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Opportunity for board members and citizens to speak on items of interest within subject matter jurisdiction of the District. Please note 
that, for comments made on items  not appearing on the current agenda, the Board may take no action as to the comment at the current 
meeting (Gov’t Code 54954.3[a]), and the Board is allowed only a brief response to the speaker’s comment. For the record, please state 
your name.  “Request to speak” cards should be filled out in advance and presented to the Board Chair or the recording secretary.  The 
Board has a policy limiting any speaker to not more than five minutes  

 
D. PRESENTATIONS 
 D1. Public Hearing – Possible 5% Increase in Director Meeting Compensation 
 
E. CONSENT ITEMS 
 E1. Approval of August 2019 Financial Statements ............................................................... 2 
 E2. Minutes of September 3, Strategic Planning Committee Meeting .................................. 17 
 E3. Minutes of September 4, 2019 Finance Committee Meeting ......................................... 19 
 E4. Minutes of September 11, 2019 Regular Board Meeting ............................................... 22 
 E5. Minutes of September 13, 2019 Facilities Committee Meeting ...................................... 28 
 D4. Minutes of September 27, 2019 Gov’t and Public Engagement Committee Meeting ..... 31 
 
F. REPORTS 

F1. Finance Committee – Directors Jeffries and Mroz 
F2. Gov’t and Public Engagement Committee – Directors Schwartz-Frates and Mroz 
F3. Facilities Committee – Directors Leach and Mroz 
F4. Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Salmon and Jeffries 
F5. Executive Director – Rachel Mason .............................................................................. 35 
F6. General Counsel – Jeffrey Scott 

 
G. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

G1. Review Resolution 430 – Establishing Policies and Procedures for Implementing the 
California Public Records Act and Policy ...................................................................... 53 

 G2. Review Grant Policy ...................................................................................................... 58 
 G3. Review Election of Directors and Board Vacancies Policy ............................................ 66 



 

 

H. ACTION ITEMS 
H1. Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2 – Increasing Compensation of  
 Directors ....................................................................................................................... 69 
H2. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 429 – Adopting Meeting Compensation 

Guidelines and a Policy of Six (6) Meetings Per Month  ................................................ 71 
H3. Approval of Meeting Compensation Policy 3010 ........................................................... 73 

 
I. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 
 I1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 
  I1a. Item(s) for future board agendas 
  I1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

• ACHD 65th Annual Meeting – October 9-11, La Jolla 
• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) 

meeting – 3rd Wednesday, October 16, 10:30am-noon, FRHD Administrative 
Office, Community Room (downstairs) 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

• Strategic Planning Committee meeting – October 16, 5:00pm, Administrative 
Office, Board Community Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

• Fallbrook Chamber of Commerce “Fallbrook Harvest Faire  
 2019” – Sunday, October 20, 9:00a-4:00p, Downtown Fallbrook 
• Bonsall Chamber of Commerce “Fall Festival” – Saturday, October 26, 

10:00a-3:00p, location to be determined 
• CSDA "Essential Communications for Every Special District"  
 Workshop – Wednesday, October 30, San Diego 
• Finance Committee meeting – 1st Wednesday, November 6, 5:30pm, FRHD 

Administrative Office, Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook  
• Woman of Wellness meeting – 1st Thursday, November 7, 6:00 – 7:30pm, 

Fallbrook Library 
 

I2. Next Regular Board meeting – Wednesday, November 13, 2019, 6:00pm, FRHD 
Administrative Office, Community Room (downstairs) 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

 
J. ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: I certify that on Friday, October 4, 2019 I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near the regular meeting place 
of the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District, said time being at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. 
The American with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from 
participation in, or denied the benefits of District business.  If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the District office 24 hours prior to the meeting at 760-731-9187. 

 

 

Board Secretary/Clerk 



Page 1 of 74



Page 2 of 74



Page 3 of 74



Page 4 of 74



Page 5 of 74



Page 6 of 74



Page 7 of 74



Page 8 of 74



Page 9 of 74



TOTAL
Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul '19 - Jun 20

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 26,000 15,000 68,000 152,000 635,000 350,000 50,000 50,000 430,000 200,000 40,000 30,000 2,046,000
403 · Interest / Dividends 17,500 17,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 200,000
406 · Unearned Inc (Loss) - Cal Trust 2,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 35,000

Total 400. · District 45,500 35,500 87,500 171,500 654,500 369,500 69,500 69,500 449,500 219,500 59,500 49,500 2,281,000

460 · Lease Income
460.01 · Med+ Urgent Care (formerly A+) 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 33,600
460.03 · Rock Rose School 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 21,000

Total 460 · Lease Income 6,300 6,300 6,300 6,300 6,300 6,300 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 54,600

Total Income 51,800 41,800 93,800 177,800 660,800 375,800 72,300 72,300 452,300 222,300 62,300 52,300 2,335,600

Gross Profit 51,800 41,800 93,800 177,800 660,800 375,800 72,300 72,300 452,300 222,300 62,300 52,300 2,335,600

Expense
500 · Admin. Expenses & Overhead

500.10 · Salaries 21,337 21,337 21,337 21,337 21,337 21,337 21,337 21,337 21,337 21,337 21,337 21,337 256,040
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 21,000
500.14 · W/C Insurance 146 146 146 146 146 146 146 146 146 146 146 146 1,750
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 32,000
500.16 · Board Stipends 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 30,000
500.17 · Education & Conferences 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 8,811 199 100 6,000 110 50 180 100 300 300 300 150 16,600
500.19 · Insurance - General 2,052 2,052 2,052 2,052 2,052 2,052 2,052 2,052 2,052 2,052 2,052 2,052 24,620
500.20 · Independent Accounting Services 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 8,000
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 0 9,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,000
500.23 · General Counsel 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 50,000
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 517 517 517 517 517 517 517 517 517 517 517 517 6,200
02 · I.T. and Website services 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000
03 · Refreshments 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 1,500
04 · Office Expenses 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
05 · LAFCO Admin fees 1,367 0 0 0 0 0 1,367
06 · Independent Contract Services 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 8,509 7,142 7,142 7,142 7,142 7,142 7,142 7,142 7,142 7,142 7,142 7,142 87,067

500.27 · Depreciation 817 817 817 817 817 817 817 817 817 817 817 817 9,800
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
500.32 · Consultant Fees 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000
500.33 · Copier Lease 783 783 783 783 783 783 783 783 783 783 783 783 9,400
500.36 · Accrued Vacation & Sick Leave 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 7,000
500.40 · Video/AV Equipment 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000

Total 500 · Admin. Expenses & Overhead 58,038 57,058 47,959 63,859 47,969 47,909 48,039 47,959 48,159 48,159 48,159 48,009 611,277

570 · Mgmt./Maint. - E. Mission Road
570.02 · Gas & Electric 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 7,500
570.03 · Water 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 2,500
570.04 · Waste Management 0 75 0 75 0 75 0 75 0 75 0 75 450
570.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
570.07 · Custodial Services 390 390 390 390 390 390 390 390 390 390 390 390 4,680
570.08 · Architect Expense 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 0 4,000 0 4,000 0 0 13,000
570.09 · Land Use - Permitting 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 0 4,000 0 4,000 0 0 13,000
570.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000
570.12 · Fire Alarm System 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
570.23 · General Counsel 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000
570.25 · Office Expense

25.02 · I.T. & Website Services 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 1,500
25.04 · Office Expenses 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 9,000
25.06 · Independent Contract Services 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000

Total 570.25 · Office Expense 1,292 1,292 1,292 1,292 1,292 1,292 1,292 1,292 1,292 1,292 1,292 1,292 15,500

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss - Approved Annual Budget Overview

July 2019 through June 2020

Report 4Page 10 of 74



TOTAL
Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul '19 - Jun 20

570.29 · Dist. Promotions & Publications 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
570.32 · Consultant Fees 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 30,000

Total 570 · Mgmt./Maint. - E. Mission Road 13,515 13,590 13,515 13,590 13,515 23,590 13,515 21,590 13,515 21,590 13,515 13,590 188,630

590 · Mgmt./Maint. - S. Brandon Road
590.01 · Property Manager 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000
590.02 · Gas & Electric 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 10,000
590.03 · Water 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
590.04 · Waste Management 0 75 0 75 0 75 0 75 0 75 0 75 450
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 11,000
590.07 · Custodial Services 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 667 8,000
590.08 · Elevator 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 2,500
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 0 222 0 0 378 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 600
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
590.11 · Medical Records Store & Service 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 22,000
590.12 · Fire Alarm System 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 1,000
590.13 · Renovations / Improvements

.13.01. · Architect Expense 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 10,000

Total 590.13 · Renovations / Improvements 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 10,000

Total 590 · Mgmt./Maint. - S. Brandon Road 7,292 7,589 7,292 7,367 7,670 7,367 7,292 7,367 7,292 7,367 7,292 7,367 88,550

600 · Community Health Contracts
600.02 · Fbk Citizens Crime Prevention 2,825 0 0 0 2,825 0 0 2,825 0 0 2,825 0 11,300
600.03 · Be Well Therapy, Inc. 5,929 0 0 0 5,929 0 0 5,929 0 0 5,929 0 23,714
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 19,240 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 10,000 0 0 10,000 0 49,240
600.05 · Community Health Systems, Inc. 30,000 0 0 0 30,000 0 0 30,000 0 0 30,000 0 120,000
600.07 · Fbk Senior Citizens Srvc Club 31,250 0 0 0 31,250 0 0 31,250 0 0 31,250 0 125,000
600.08 · Fallbrook Smiles Project 22,545 0 0 0 22,545 0 0 22,545 0 0 22,545 0 90,180
600.11 · Palomar Family Counseling Srvc 16,856 0 0 0 16,856 0 0 16,856 0 0 16,856 0 67,423
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 71,840 0 0 0 71,840 0 0 71,840 0 0 71,840 0 287,362
600.18 · Fallbrook Food Pantry 32,500 0 0 0 32,500 0 0 32,500 0 0 32,500 0 130,000
600.33 · REINS Therapeutic Prgm 24,716 0 0 0 24,716 0 0 24,716 0 0 24,716 0 98,865
600.37 · Trauma Intervention Prgm of SD 2,500 0 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 10,000
600.46 · Mental Health Systems, Inc. 2,534 0 0 0 2,534 0 0 2,534 0 0 2,534 0 10,137
600.51 · North County C.E.R.T. Inc. 1,305 0 0 0 1,305 0 0 1,305 0 0 1,305 0 5,220
600.57 · NC Fire Protection District 26,250 0 0 0 26,250 0 0 26,250 0 0 26,250 0 105,000
600.58 · Michelle's Place 8,041 0 0 0 8,041 0 0 8,041 0 0 8,041 0 32,162
600.60 · D'Vine Path, Inc. 1,910 0 0 0 1,910 0 0 1,910 0 0 1,910 0 7,640
600.61 · San Diego North County Lions 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000
600.62 · Neighborhood Healthcare 3,750 0 0 0 3,750 0 0 3,750 0 0 3,750 0 15,000

Total 600 · Community Health Contracts 308,991 0 0 0 294,751 0 0 294,751 0 0 294,751 0 1,193,243

800 · District Direct Care Services
800.02 · Med+ Urgent Care 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 96,000
800.03 · North County Fire JPA EMSO/Amb. 0 0 0 8,889 8,889 8,889 8,889 8,889 8,889 8,889 8,889 8,889 80,000
800.04 · NC Fire JPA Public Comm. 0 0 0 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 30,000

Total 800 · District Direct Care Services 8,000 8,000 8,000 20,222 20,222 20,222 20,222 20,222 20,222 20,222 20,222 20,222 206,000

Total Expense 395,835 86,237 76,766 105,038 384,127 99,088 89,068 391,889 89,188 97,338 383,939 89,188 2,287,700

Net Ordinary Income (344,035) (44,437) 17,034 72,762 276,673 276,712 (16,768) (319,589) 363,112 124,962 (321,639) (36,888) 47,900

Net Income (344,035) (44,437) 17,034 72,762 276,673 276,712 (16,768) (319,589) 363,112 124,962 (321,639) (36,888) 47,900

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss - Approved Annual Budget Overview

July 2019 through June 2020

Report 4 Page 11 of 74



Report 5

Page 12 of 74



Report 6

Page 13 of 74



Page 14 of 74



Page 15 of 74



Page 16 of 74



Page 17 of 74



Page 18 of 74



Page 19 of 74



Page 20 of 74



Page 21 of 74



Page 22 of 74



Page 23 of 74



Page 24 of 74



Page 25 of 74



Page 26 of 74



Page 27 of 74



Page 28 of 74



Page 29 of 74



Page 30 of 74



Page 31 of 74



Page 32 of 74



Page 33 of 74



Page 34 of 74



Page 35 of 74



Page 36 of 74



Page 37 of 74



Page 38 of 74



Page 39 of 74



Page 40 of 74



Page 41 of 74



Page 42 of 74



Page 43 of 74



Page 44 of 74



Page 45 of 74



Page 46 of 74



Page 47 of 74



Page 48 of 74



Page 49 of 74



Page 50 of 74



Page 51 of 74



Page 52 of 74



Page 53 of 74



Page 54 of 74



Page 55 of 74



Page 56 of 74



Page 57 of 74



 

Reviewed: 5/30/19, Revised 10/4/19 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

Community Health Contracts / Grants Policy & Procedures 
 

 

DISTRICT BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

Fallbrook Regional Health District (“District”) is a government entity under the Local Health 

Care District Law (Statutes 1945, Chapter 932; Health and Safety Code, Division 23, Sections 

32000 et seq., of the State of California). The District serves residents of the Fallbrook, Bonsall, 

Rainbow and De Luz areas of northern San Diego County. 

Created by residents for residents, Healthcare Districts throughout California provide vital 

services for the community members who create and oversee them. As the most responsive form 

of local government, Healthcare Districts are established, operated, and controlled by local 

voters who understand each community's concerns and ensure that each District is effectively 

meeting their local health care needs. 

 

The Fallbrook Regional Health District Mission:  

Promoting health for the people of the District. 

 

 

  

Page 58 of 74



GRANTS POLICY & PROCEDURES 

2 

GUIDELINES 

PROGRAMS FUNDED 

The District funds grants to organizations that not only meet the needs of underserved individuals 

and communities but are also consistent with the District’s mission. 

 

The Health Care District Act (Health & Safety Code section 32121) has evolved over the years to 

provide very broad authority to Health Care Districts.  Currently, Health Care Districts have 

numerous powers, which include the establishment, maintenance, and operation, or the providing 

of assistance in the operation of, one or more health facilities or health services, including but not 

limited to, outpatient programs, services and facilities; retirement programs, services, and 

facilities; chemical dependency programs, services, and facilities; or other health care programs, 

services, and facilities for the benefit of the people served by the district. 

 

Moreover, among other powers, the Health District may establish, maintain, and operate, or 

provide assistance in the operation of, free clinics, diagnostic and testing centers; health education, 

wellness and prevention programs; rehabilitation, aftercare and any other healthcare services; 

provider groups; and organizations that are necessary for the maintenance of good physical and 

mental health in the communities served by the District. 

 

POPULATION SERVED 

The District provides grant funding through the Community Health Contracts (CHC) program. 

Community Health Contract funds must benefit the residents of the communities served by the 

Fallbrook Regional Health District.  The District’s service area and sphere of influence area covers 

110.57 square miles.  This includes Bonsall, De Luz, Fallbrook, and Rainbow. Estimated 

population of the District is 57,000 (SANDAG, January 2011). The San Diego Local Agency 

Formation Commission (LAFCO) Sphere of Influence Map can be found here:  

 http://www.sdlafco.org/images/11x17maps/HCD_Fallbrook.pdf 

 

APPLICANT ELIGIBILITY 

To be eligible for consideration, the applicant must meet the following requirements: 

1. The agency must be an incorporated nonprofit organization with a tax-exempt status 

under California state law and Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or, be a 

public/governmental agency, program or institution. 

Newly established agencies must: 

a. Demonstrate, through written agreement with a 501(c)(3) qualified agency 

that, for the one-year period of the CHC, they will fall under the auspices 

of that qualified agency. The agency providing the umbrella status must 

meet the District requirement of being an established provider of healthcare 

related preventive or intervention services to the public in the District 

community. 

b. Secure 501(c)(3) status within the CHC funded year.  If they fail to secure 

501(c)(3) status, they will be ineligible for subsequent application for 

Fallbrook Regional Health District funding until such time as proof of 

501(c)(3) status has been attained and presented. 

 

Page 59 of 74

http://www.sdlafco.org/images/11x17maps/HCD_Fallbrook.pdf


GRANTS POLICY & PROCEDURES 

3 

2. For-profit (commercial) organizations are eligible to apply but will only be considered if 

providing services that are not available by a nonprofit provider. All policies and 

requirements apply equally to for-profit and non-profit recipients. Including, but not 

limited to the inclusion of financial information, budgets and reporting or results. 

3. The agency must demonstrate the ability to provide services and/or programs that will 

benefit the residents of the District. 

4. The funded services must be provided within the District and demonstrate the ability to 

make services and/or programs easily accessible to District residents. 

5. Awarding contracts to underserved individuals will be taken under consideration; 

however, support for this application would likely be referred to a nonprofit partner to 

coordinate services. 

 

MULTIPLE APPLICATION SUBMISSIONS 

An agency may submit multiple grant applications per fiscal year for multiple programs.  For 

example: If an agency operates two distinct programs, one dental clinic and one mental health 

clinic, the agency could, theoretically, apply for and receive two district CHCs. 

PRIOR GRANT RECIPIENTS 

The District does not restrict reapplication from year to year for previously awarded contract 

holders. However, noncompliant or inefficient use of funds may render organizations ineligible 

for future funding. Considering the circumstances under which grants may be provided to prior 

grant recipients, and exceptions to these circumstances. 

 

INELIGIBLE FOR FUNDING 

The District will not fund: 

• Endowments 

• Awarding grants to, and limiting funds for, foundations that are sponsored or controlled 

by, or associated with, a separate grant recipient. 

• Expenses related to fundraising or lobbying of public officials or other political 

purposes 

• Organizations intending to "pass-through" or re-grant District funds to other 

organizations; unless serving as the fiscal agent or umbrella for a designated local 

nonprofit. Funds must be clearly used to support District residents. 

• Basic research, defined herein as the pursuit of knowledge without immediate practical 

program or human applications 

• Sectarian purposes 

• Programs related to provision of housing, employment opportunity and/or educational 

pursuits for the purpose of employment. 

• All other restricted uses contained herein. 

 

Page 60 of 74



GRANTS POLICY & PROCEDURES 

4 

REVIEW PROCESS 

All CHC funding requests are reviewed by the District Executive Director and Board Directors.  

During the review process, the District may require additional information from applicants. This 

information may include oral or written clarification of CHC request detail. The District may 

include a panel of community stakeholders to review the completeness and merit of the applicants 

and provide feedback to the Executive Director. Final funding decisions will be made by the 

District Board of Directors at a public meeting. See application and review schedule on page 5. 

Certain rights are reserved to Board discretion and action.  

 

RIGHTS RESERVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Fallbrook Regional Health District Board of Directors reserves the right to decline or accept 

application(s) upon fair consideration in accord with CHC guidelines established and provided to 

all applicants.  On applications accepted and approved, the Board reserves the right to determine 

the amount of funding to be awarded. 

 

The Board reserves the right to adjust category designation in accord with its’ established criteria.  

In addition, the Board reserves the right to seek additional information as necessary to make their 

funding determinations.  This shall be by request for clarification in written form. Requests shall 

be presented to the applicant by the appropriate District Staff Member and must be returned to the 

District office in a timely manner.  Site visits and/or interviews may also be scheduled in the 

application review process.  

 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 

All CHC applications will be evaluated on the following criteria: 

1. Proposed program addresses and/or includes one of the following: 

a. High Cholesterol   f.  Anxiety   

b. Hypertension    g. Depression    

c. Type 2 Diabetes   h. Adolescent Health  

d. Eye Problems/Eye Disease  i. Behavioral Health 

e. Obesity    j. Prevention Initiatives    

2. At least 80% of FRHD funded program participants are District residents. Applicants 

agree to submit program participants’ zip code in the quarterly progress report.  

3. 10% of proposed program’s budget is funded by another funding source/ in kind support.  

4. Program has fully developed program goals that can be measured at quarterly intervals.  

Corresponding SMART (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, Time-Bound) 

Objectives will be provided to demonstrate how those goals will be achieved. Programs 

that have singular goals may reiterate the goal and SMART Objectives for each quarter. 

a. Programs with time bound or singular events will select only that quarter in which 

the activity takes place.  

b. One goal and corresponding SMART Objective are to be developed for each 

quarter and stated in the proposal.  

c. Each quarterly report will also include the zip code, gender and age of 

participants. Additional data categories will be mutually agreed upon by FRHD 

Page 61 of 74



GRANTS POLICY & PROCEDURES 

5 

and the funded organization. The data will be reported in a manner determined by 

the funded organization.  

5. Programs are to be based on evidence-based program(s)/ best practices.  

a. New programs, pilots, should be able to demonstrate the need for this service, that 

there is no existing service working toward the same goal, and or that 

collaboration with an existing service is anticipated.  

6. The application will list where and when it is anticipated that acknowledgement of 

Fallbrook Regional Health District funding support will be included. This includes all 

print and electronic materials, press releases, website references, and any other form of 

written and verbal publicity that relates to the funded program. Acknowledgment should 

include an official sponsor line, as well as the FRHD logo. Flyers and links are to be 

included in the quarterly report.  

7. While not a required element of proposals, programs that include collaboration with 

another agency will be viewed favorably in the reviewing process.  

 

APPLICATION & EVALUATION SCHEDULE 

COMMUNITY HEALTH CONTRACT WORKSHOPS: Informational session, Q&A, and 

collaborative brainstorming will occur in January & February. 

APPLICATION WINDOW:  Open, first Monday in March at 9:00am, Close, last Monday in 

March, 5:00pm. Application is available on the Community Health Contracts Page: 

https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/community-health-contracts 

Technical assistance from Community Health Coordinator is available upon request. 

APPLICATION EVALUATION PERIOD: April 1-30 

The Executive Director and Community Health Coordinator will review each application for 

completeness before submitting copies to the Board of Directors. Each Board Director shall 

receive some number of applications to review, with distribution based upon the Board Members 

interest and or knowledge within the area of service. Site visits may be scheduled. Additionally, 

a panel of community stakeholders may be organized to assist and provide feedback upon the 

merit of the program or project being proposed.  

Individual meetings regarding the merit of grant applications between a grant applicant 

and a district board member, officer, or staff outside of the district’s established grant 

awards process is prohibited. Technical assistance from Community Health Coordinator 

or Executive Director may be offered. 

BOARD REVIEW AND DISCUSSION: FINANCE COMMITTEE, 1st Wednesday in May 

Recommendations for CHC awards and amounts will be discussed at the May Finance meeting. 

Located at the FRHD Admin Building Meeting Room, 138 South Brandon Road, Fallbrook. 

ANNOUNCEMENT OF AWARDS: BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, 2nd 

Wednesday in May or June. Pending need for additional details the announcement may occur 

in June. Location: FRHD Admin Building Meeting Room, 138 South Brandon Road, Fallbrook. 

DISTRIBUTION OF CHC AGREEMENT: Signed agreement must be returned to the District 

by the 1st Wednesday of July to complete execution prior to scheduling Quarter 1 payment site 

visit. 

Page 62 of 74

https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/community-health-contracts


GRANTS POLICY & PROCEDURES 

6 

QUARTER 1 PAYMENT AND SITE VISITS: Board of Directors and staff will begin making 

disbursements and conducting site visits during the month of July. 

 

Exact dates will be updated and posted on https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/ every year 

 

 

REPORTING & PAYMENT DISTRIBUTION GUIDELINES 

By accepting the contract, the recipient agrees to periodic monitoring of their contracted program 

by District staff members and/or a District consultant.  Additionally, the recipient agrees to submit 

timely periodic written and/or oral reports to the Board as defined in the executed agreement and 

to participate in District Community Health Program events and attend, representatively, District 

Board meetings when requested.   

Reports must be submitted by the following due dates:  

1st Quarter: 2nd Wednesday of October 

2nd Quarter: 2nd Wednesday of January 

3rd Quarter: 2nd Wednesday of April    

4th Quarter: 2nd Wednesday of July 

 

Contract holders must contact the Community Health Coordinator if these deadlines can not be 

met before the due date. Reports that are more than one month late may cause the contract to be 

cancelled. 

 

Payment Distribution will be on or after the following payment dates:  

1st Quarter Check:  1st Monday of July 

2nd Quarter Check: 1st Monday of November  

3rd Quarter Check: 1st Monday of February  

4th Quarter Check: 1st Monday of May  

 

The Community Health Coordinator will contact recipients to schedule a site visit where 

payment distribution will be made. Payment is contingent upon receival of quarterly reports. 

Community Health Coordinator, Board Member(s), and/or Executive Director may be present at 

site visit.  

 

SPONSORSHIP OF CHARITABLE EVENTS 

FRHD does not currently provide sponsorships of charitable events. However, support for these 

events may be considered at a future time, which would be publicly announced and would follow 

the below guidelines: 

1. Organizations requesting the District to sponsor a charitable event shall solicit in the form 

of a letter or in combination with a grant request application, as well as any appropriate 

back-up materials, including a list of sponsorship levels, if applicable. 

2. The request shall clearly indicate the amount requested, the sponsorship opportunity 

levels, and how the event will benefit a community health care program that provides 

services in the District. 

3. The request shall include the price per individual ticket/pass to attend, as well as the 

portion of the amount attributed to the purchase of goods and services. 

Page 63 of 74

https://www.fallbrookhealth.org/


GRANTS POLICY & PROCEDURES 

7 

4. The request shall include a final accounting of the prior year’s event, if applicable, as 

well as a budget for the event being requested, so the District can clearly determine the 

cost of holding the event in comparison to the funds benefitting community health care 

programs.  No less than 80 percent of the revenue shall be applied to the organization’s 

programs and not to event expenses. 

5. Events advertised in brochures and/or fliers that give the appearance of being sent to the 

District as part of a mass mailing shall not be considered. 

 

Page 64 of 74



Page 65 of 74



Page 66 of 74



Page 67 of 74



Page 68 of 74



Page 69 of 74



Page 70 of 74



Page 71 of 74



Page 72 of 74



Page 73 of 74



Page 74 of 74




